<u>Minutes</u>

CORPORATE RESOURCES & INFRASTRUCTURE SELECT COMMITTEE



12 June 2024

Meeting held at Committee Room 5 - Civic Centre

	Committee Members Present: Councillors John Riley (Chair), Adam Bennett (Vice-Chair), Kaushik Banerjee, Farhad Choubedar, Stuart Mathers (Opposition Lead) and Narinder Garg
	LBH Officers Present: Anisha Teji, Democratic Services
	Kirstie Newham, Emergency Management and Response Service Manager
3.	APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE (Agenda Item 1)
	Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Elizabeth Garelick.
4.	DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST IN MATTERS COMING BEFORE THIS MEETING (Agenda Item 2)
	None.
5.	MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING (Agenda Item 3)
	RESOLVED: That the minutes of the previous meeting be agreed as an accurate record.
6.	MINUTES FROM THE PROPERTY, HIGHWAYS AND TRANSPORT SELECT COMMITTEE - 9 APRIL 2024 (Agenda Item 4)
	RESOLVED: That the minutes of the Property, Highways and Transport Select Committee meeting dated 9 April 2024 be agreed.
7.	MINUTES FROM FINANCE AND CORPORATE SERVICES SELECT COMMITTEE - 17 APRIL 2024 (Agenda Item 5)
	RESOLVED: That the minutes of the Finance and Corporate Services Select Committee meeting dated 17 April 2024 be agreed as an accurate record.
8.	TO CONFIRM THAT THE ITEMS OF BUSINESS MARKED AS PART I WILL BE CONSIDERED IN PUBLIC AND THAT THE ITEMS MARKED AS PART II WILL BE CONSIDERED IN PRIVATE (Agenda Item 6)
	It was confirmed that all items would be heard in Part I.

9. INTRODUCTION TO THE CORPORATE RESOURCES AND INFRASTRUCTURE SELECT COMMITTEE AND ITS REMIT (Agenda Item 7)

The Committee considered the report detailing the Corporate Resources and Infrastructure Select Committee's remit. Members received information on the Committee's Terms of Reference, recent and current activity undertaken by other Select Committees, policy reviews and a full breakdown of different service areas.

Members took the view that the title of the Committee should be renamed to the 'Finance, Corporate Resources and Infrastructure Select Committee. It was considered that this would help to convey one of the primary responsibilities of the Committee. Members asked Democratic Services to explore this further.

Members acknowledged that this was a committee with a huge remit that considered various service areas. Ensuring thorough preparation and understanding of the agenda in advance was important to enable focussed and effective discussions at meetings. It was noted that site visits would also be useful.

RESOLVED: That Democratic Services explore the possible renaming of the Committee and that the report be noted.

10. | COUNCIL'S EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AND RESPONSE SERVICE (Agenda Item 8)

The Emergency Management and Response Service Manager provided Members with an overview of the service and recent examples of emergency management.

Members were advised that the service existed due to legal obligations under the Civil Contingencies Act 2004 which required local authorities to plan, respond and provide resolutions during emergencies. Emergencies included events or situations that posed serious harm to human welfare, the environment, or national security.

The legal requirements of the act included assessing the likelihood of emergencies, conducting horizon scanning for risks and developing emergency plans to mobilise resources effectively. It also included establishing business continuity management arrangements, warning and informing residents during emergencies and sharing information with other local partners such as the ambulance, police and fire services. A key function of the service was to maintain the Hillingdon Multi Agency Community Risk Register by identifying any threats and mitigating any risks.

The Committee heard that a template for business continuity plan was provided to every service across the Council to complete and these were audited to ensure that they were fit for purpose. The Council's Corporate Emergency Response Plan set out the procedures for emergency communications with a focus on communicating to residents and staff during an emergency

Members were informed that the Hillingdon Resilience Forum (HRF) had 84 members that facilitated cooperation among local responders through multi-agency training and exercises. The Council's Emergency Management and Response Service involved category one and category two responders, including blue light partners, utility companies, transport providers, telecommunications, charities, and the voluntary sector. Additionally, the Council maintained an Emergency Management command structure ensuring 24/7 capabilities for responding to emergencies.

The Committee heard that the Emergency Management and Response Service operated on the nationally recognised model of bronze, silver, and gold. This standardised model ensured efficient multi-agency working and officers were informed of emergencies by the services or the contact centre. Officers would then assess the situation and coordinate the necessary response. Common emergencies included floods and fires.

The Committee was provided with real life examples of emergencies that had recently occurred such as car collision in Hayes, a suspected unexploded World War Two ordinance and a serious fire impacting two neighbouring houses.

Further to Member questions regarding the use of the bronze, silver and gold system, it was explained that this operated both locally and nationally and the roles ensured 24/7 coverage to respond to emergencies. In terms of the impact of location and risk of emergencies, it was noted that being close to Heathrow Airport posed increased risks such as counter terror, aviation collisions and fires.

In response to questions around managing emergencies in the Borough and available resources, it was noted that concurrent emergencies anywhere in the Borough would put pressure on council resources. However, mutual aid arrangements across London allowed resources to be borrowed from other local authorities. External resource could be sought after at least 48 hours. Members were advised that the ability to manage emergencies depended on the specific circumstances such as size, scale and complexity. It was noted that there tended to be approximately three emergencies a month.

During Member questions it was noted that not all emergencies required a local authority response, and many were dealt in isolation by the emergency services. In order to ensure that the risk register was up to date the Emergency Management and Response Service liaised with different service areas to identify emerging risks. Joint working with other councils and county authorities was key in managing emergencies. A collaborative effort was required to ensure that residents were prepared for emergencies such as having fundamental basics in the home.

Members were informed that London, like many places, faced the threat of cyberattacks and recent incidents highlighted the impact of these threats. Members were advised that London had a cyber response framework in place to guide its actions if targeted by such attacks. Additionally, business continuity plans addressed scenarios where technology failed entirely, including power outages. Preparing for these contingencies was crucial to maintaining essential services. The Committee was assured that cyber security was a high priority on the Hillingdon risk register.

The Committee thanked the Emergency Response Manager for the informative, detailed and insightful presentation. Members considered that it would be useful to receive yearly data on the volume and types of emergencies at the next update to the Committee.

RESOLVED: That the Committee noted the presentation on the Council's Emergency Response Service.

11. | ROAD SAFETY REVIEW UPDATE (Agenda Item 9)

The Committee considered the report on the former review into the Council's Road Safety Initiatives and Activities around the Borough's Schools. The report outlined the review and the draft recommendations put together by the former Committee.

RESOLVED: That the Committee:

- 1. Noted the former select committees' review and their final draft conclusions, findings and recommendations in Appendix 1.
- 2. Delegated submission of these, and the final report on the matter to the Cabinet to the Democratic Services Officer, in consultation with this Committee's Chair and other Members as appropriate.

12. **FORWARD PLAN** (Agenda Item 10)

The Committee requested further information on the London Borough of Hillingdon Digital Strategy prior to going to Cabinet in September 2024. It was agreed Democratic Services would look into this further and report back to the Committee.

RESOLVED: That the Committee noted the Forward Plan and requested further information on the London Borough of Hillingdon Digital Strategy.

13. **WORK PROGRAMME** (Agenda Item 11)

After reviewing the minutes of the former Property, Highways and Transport Select Committee at agenda item 4, Members expressed concern regarding the status of the Council's Fleet. An update was requested by Members to explore this matter further at the July 2024 meeting. It was agreed that Democratic Services would liaise with officers to arrange an update.

It was also agreed that Democratic Services would liaise with officers to obtain an update on digitalisation.

RESOLVED: That the Committee noted the Work Programme and agreed to hear updates on the Council's Fleet and Digitalisation.

The meeting, which commenced at 7.00 pm, closed at 8.23 pm.

These are the minutes of the above meeting. For more information on any of the resolutions please contact Anisha Teji, Senior Democratic Services Officer on ateji@hillingdon.gov.uk or 01895 277655. Circulation of these minutes is to Councillors, Officers, the Press and Members of the Public.